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Dear Valued Stakeholders, 

I am pleased to share with you some exciting 

developments and achievements of our company 

over the past year. It is with immense pride and 

satisfaction that I report that our company has not 

only witnessed substantial growth but has also 

successfully executed all projects, paving the way for 

a brighter future. 

One of the significant milestones we have achieved 

is the expansion of our activities. We have recently 

placed orders for Coating Machines, which, upon 

installation, will enable us to manufacture JMS 

Meditape in India. Furthermore, we are diversifying 

our product offerings by venturing into the 

production of various wound dressing tapes right 

here in India. This strategic move not only enhances 

our product portfolio but also contributes to our goal 

of self-reliance. 

In our continuous pursuit of excellence, we have also placed orders for molds that will facilitate the 

production of JMS Products in India. This endeavour holds the promise of substantial savings in foreign 

exchange and positions us for robust future growth, driven by cost efficiencies. 

Our foray into the healthcare sector has yielded remarkable results. The marketing of critical medical 

products such as X-Ray Machines, Ultrasound equipment, CR, DR, and other essential medical devices has 

significantly bolstered our revenue streams. This diversification has not only been financially rewarding but 

also underscores our commitment to contributing to the healthcare infrastructure of our nation. 

As we move forward, we remain resolute in our determination to expand our footprint across India and 

beyond. Our unwavering dedication to quality and innovation will continue to drive us to explore new 

horizons, identify emerging markets, and create value for our stakeholders. 

I am delighted to report that our export orders have been on the rise, and we have consistently met our 

commitments on time. This not only reflects our commitment to reliability and customer satisfaction but 

also positions us favourably in the international market. 

In conclusion, the journey of our company has been marked by resilience, innovation, and a relentless 

pursuit of excellence. We are confident that the coming year will bring even greater success and 

prosperity. I extend my heartfelt gratitude to our employees, partners, and customers for their unwavering 

support and dedication. 

Let us march forward with renewed vigor and determination, as we continue to shape the future of our 

company and make a positive impact on the world. 

Thank you for your trust in us. 

 

Hanskumar Shamji Shah  

Chairman & Managing Director 
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Dear Shareholders, 

This year has been a test of resilience, adaptability, 

and strategic financial management, and I am 

pleased to share how we have steered our company 

through these challenging waters. 

Our company achieved 5% (YoY) growth in total 

revenue, reaching Rs. 10914.82 Lacs during the fiscal 

year. This robust revenue growth reflects our ability to 

adapt to changing market conditions and customer 

needs. 

We delivered a PAT of Rs. 763.73 Lacs for the year, 

representing a 66% (YoY) increase from the previous 

year. This remarkable achievement demonstrates our 

dedication to enhancing shareholder value. 

We successfully reduced our debt levels by 34.14%, 

enhancing our financial stability and reducing our 

interest expenses. This prudent approach strengthens 

our long-term financial position. 

Throughout the year, we continued to invest in innovation, technology, and sustainability. These strategic 

initiatives are vital in positioning us for long-term success in an ever-evolving market landscape. 

Following our IPO, the company has embarked on several manufacturing initiatives. This includes an 

exclusive agreement with Zonecare for ECG machines, plans to manufacture diabetic solutions products, 

and a technical collaboration for the marketing and production of SmartBeat, the world's first WIFI cloud-

based ECG Monitoring machine. The company entered into joint venture as dialysis service provider in 

Philippines. The company recently got approved for more than 50 cardiac products from the regulatory 

which company intends to launch for indian as well as global market whereby HSIL will be manufacturing 

cardiac products in india for the global platform. As we move forward, we remain committed to 

transparency, financial discipline, and value creation. Our dedication to sustainable growth and 

responsible financial stewardship will guide us in navigating the opportunities and challenges that lie 

ahead. 

I want to thank you, our shareholders, for your continued trust and confidence in our company. We are 

committed to delivering sustained value and growth, and we look forward to the opportunities that the 

future holds. 

 

Kaushik Hanskumar Shah 

Whole Time Director & CFO 
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Whole Time Director 
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NOTICE OF 34TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 34TH (THIRTY-FOURTH) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS 

OF HEMANT SURGICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED WILL BE HELD ON SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2023, AT 12.30 

P.M. (IST), THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (“VC”)/OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL MEANS (“OAVM”) TO 

TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS:  

1. Adoption of Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023: -  

To receive, consider and adopt the financial statements of the Company for the financial year 

ended on March 31, 2023 including the audited Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2023 and the 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Directors and 

Auditors thereon. 

 

2. Re-appointment of Director: -  

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Hemant Praful Shah (DIN: 00215994), who retires by rotation in 

accordance with Articles of Association and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Hemant Surgical Industries Limited 

 

sd/- 

Meenal Patodia 

Company Secretary and Compliance officer  

Registered Office: 

502,5th Floor, Ecstasy Business Park Co-Op Society Limited,  

J.S.D. Road, Mulund West, Mumbai-400080 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date:  August 29, 2023 

 

NOTES – FORMING PART OF THE NOTICE 

1. Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment in pursuance of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with 

Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meetings, as applicable are annexed to this Notice.  

 

2. In terms of General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020 
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dated May 5, 2020 and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 10/2022 dated 

December 28, 2022 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) issued by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs (‘MCA‘), the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM‘) is being held through Video Conferencing 

(‘VC’) facility / Other Audio Visual Means (‘OAVM’) without the physical presence of the Members 

at a common venue. In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the 

Act’), the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) and the MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being 

held through VC/OAVM on Saturday, September 30, 2023 at 12:30 p.m. (IST) 

 

3. In accordance with the provisions of the Act, read with the Rules made thereunder and General 

Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28th December, 2022, other Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs (“MCA”) from time to time, and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated 5th 

January, 2023 issued by SEBI (“the Circulars”), companies are allowed to hold AGM through video 

conference/other audio visual means (“VC/OAVM”) upto 30th September, 2023, without the 

physical presence of members. The AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM, and 

video recording and transcript of the same shall be made available on the website of the Company. 

National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”) will be providing facilities for voting through remote 

e-voting, for participation in the AGM through VC/OAVM and e-voting during the AGM. 

 

4. In terms of the MCA Circulars, the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with and 

there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of 

proxies by the Members will not be available for the Annual General Meeting and hence the Proxy 

Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice. Members attending the AGM through 

VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

 

5. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e., other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) attending the 

meeting through VC / OAVM are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/ JPG Format) of its Board 

or governing body Resolution/ Authorisation etc., authorising its representative to attend the AGM 

through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/ 

Authorization shall be sent to the Compliance Officer by email through its registered email address 

to cs@hemantsurgical.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

 

6. The Company is concerned about the environment. We request you to update your email address 

with your Depository Participants to enable us to send you communications via email. The Members 

who have not registered their e-mail addresses, so far, are requested to register their email 

addresses, in respect of electronic holdings with the Depository through their concerned Depository 

Participants. 

 

7. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names 

as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote during the AGM. 

 

8. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual 

Report 2022- 23 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email 

mailto:cs@hemantsurgical.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories. 

 

9. Attention of the members is invited to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 

with Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 

Rules, 2016 amended from time to time (“IEPF Rules”), which inter alia requires the Company to 

transfer the equity shares, on which the dividend has remained unpaid and unclaimed for a 

continuous period of seven years, to IEPF. The said Shares, once transferred to IEPF can be claimed 

after following due procedure prescribed under the IEPF Rules. 

 

10. To register email address for all future correspondence and update the bank account details, 

please follow the below process 

 

Demat Holding:  Please contact your DP and follow the process advised by your DP 

 

11. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map does not form part of the Notice.  

 

12. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2022-23 will also be available on the 

Company’s website www.hemantsurgical.com , websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited  

at www.bseindia.com , and on the website of NSDL, www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

13. All documents referred to in the accompanying notice and the explanatory statements are open 

for inspection by the members at the registered office of the Company on all working days during 

11:00 AM to 1:00 PM. Members can request the same by sending an email to 

cs@hemantsurgical.com till the date of the AGM. 

 

14. Members seeking any information with regards to Financial Statements or any matters to be 

placed at the AGM, are requested to write to the Company on or before September 25, 2023 

through email at cs@hemantsurgical.com. The same will be replied by the Company suitably. 

 

15. Members who would like to express their views/ ask questions during the AGM may register 

themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least seven days before the AGM 

to cs@hemantsurgical.com. Members who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries 

may send their queries, mentioning the name, securities demat account number/ folio number, 

email id, mobile number to cs@hemantsurgical.com in advance at least 7 days prior to meeting. 

 

16. Only those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will be allowed to express their 

views/ ask questions during the AGM once the floor is open for shareholder queries. The Company 

reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers and number of questions depending on the 

availability of time for the AGM. 

 

17. Voting through Electronic Means:  

 

http://www.hemantsurgical.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:cs@hemantsurgical.com
mailto:cs@hemantsurgical.com
mailto:cs@hemantsurgical.com
mailto:cs@hemantsurgical.com
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) and in terms of SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ 

CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 in relation to e-voting Facility provided by Listed Entities, 

the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be 

transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with 

National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 

authorized e-voting agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well 

as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

 

The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members /list of Beneficial Owners as on 

Saturday, September 23, 2023 are entitled to vote on the resolutions, set forth in this Notice. The 

voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital 

of the Company as on the ‘cut-off date’ of Saturday, September 23, 2023. Any person holding shares 

in physical form and non- individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the Company and 

becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut- 

off date i.e. Saturday, September 23, 2023 may obtain the login ID and password by sending a 

request on  evoting@nsdl.co.in.  However, if he/she is already registered with NSDL for remote e-

voting then he/she can use his/her existing User ID and password for casting the vote.  

 

In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode and who acquires shares of the 

Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares 

as of the cut-off date may follow steps mentioned below under “Login method for remote e-voting 

and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.” 

 

Ms. Nikita Kedia, Proprietor of NKM & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary (ICSI M. No. A54970 

and Certificate of Practice No. 20414) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote 

e-Voting process and voting at AGM, in a fair and transparent manner and he has communicated 

willingness to be appointed and shall be available for the same purpose. 

  

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast 

during the AGM, thereafter, unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting and make a 

consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman 

or a person authorised by him in writing. The voting results along with the consolidated Scrutinizer’s 

Report shall be submitted to the Stock Exchange i.e., BSE Limited within two working days of 

conclusion of the AGM by the Company. 

 

The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the 

Company and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of results by the Chairman 

or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be uploaded on the BSE Listing Portal. 

 

Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on 

the date of the 34th Annual General Meeting i.e., Saturday, September 30, 2023 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS 

UNDER: - 

The remote e-voting period begins on Wednesday, September 27, 2023 (9:00 a.m.) and end on 

Friday, September 29, 2023 at 05:00 p.m. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for 

voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial 

Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e., Saturday, September 23, 2023, may cast their vote 

electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up 

equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Saturday, September 23, 2023. 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 

below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode 

 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 

account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to 

update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting 

facility. 

 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

 

Type of 

shareholders 

Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 

“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to 

enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, 

you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. 

Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be 

able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL 

for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 

at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or 

click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 

NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 

site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 

website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 

or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.  

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 

voting experience. 

 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 

their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to 

reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to login 

Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and 

click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing 

my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 

option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as per the 

information provided by company. On clicking the e-voting option, the 

user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links 

provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that 

the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

CDSL website www.cdslindia.comand click on login & New System Myeasi 

Tab and then click on registration option. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 

sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-

Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 

access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat 

mode) login 

through their 

depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 

your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 

upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting 

option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-

Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 

or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. Helpdesk for Individual 

Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 

Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL. 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 

helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 

022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 

helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 

and 022-22-23058542/43 or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33 

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical 

mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 

available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 

Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

     Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e., IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 

after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e., 

Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 

Manner of holding shares i.e., 

Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 

Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares 

in demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID 

For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** and 

Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 

IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares 

in demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 

registered with the company 

For example, if folio number is 001*** and 

EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 
 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 

login and cast your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, 

you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your 

password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 

NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e., a .pdf file. 

Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8-digit client ID for NSDL 

account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 

physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password.’  

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 

those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten 

your password: 

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, 

your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on 

the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 

check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which 

you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you 

need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting.” 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e., assent or dissent, verify/modify the 

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 

“Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on 

the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote, 

password.  

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS 

 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 

to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 

unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through 

the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

 

 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and 

e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com 

or call on toll free no.: 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 or send a request to Sarita Mote at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in 
 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring 

user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 

AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@hemantsurgical.com. 

 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID or 16-digit 

beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 

cs@hemantsurgical.com. If you are an Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you 

are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e., Login method for e-Voting 

and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id 

and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 

account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to 

update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-

Voting facility. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER: - 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 

remote e-voting. 

 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 

have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred 

from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:cs@hemantsurgical.com
mailto:cs@hemantsurgical.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, 

they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for 

e-Voting on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the 

NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to 

NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join 

meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under 

Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the 

EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID 

and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by 

following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 
 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 
 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 

respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate 

any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in 

advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

cs@hemantsurgical.com. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Hemant Surgical Industries Limited 

sd/- 

Meenal Patodia 

Company Secretary and Compliance officer  

Registered Office: 

502,5th Floor, Ecstasy Business Park Co-Op Society Limited,  

J.S.D. Road, Mulund West, Mumbai-400080 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date:  August 29, 2023 

 

mailto:cs@hemantsurgical.com


 
 
 

31 

ANNEXURE A (FOR ITEM NUMBER 2) 

 

  Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment in pursuance of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meetings, as 

applicable.  

 

Name of the Director Hemant Praful Shah  

DIN 00215994 

Date of Birth 03/03/1977 

Qualification 8th Pass 

Date of Appointment 19/09/2000  

Brief Resume along with Justification 

Note 

He possesses a tenure of 23 years of dedicated service 

with the company, along with an extensive background 

in overseeing industrial operations within the business 

framework for a period exceeding 23 years. 

Relationship with Directors Relative Family Member 

Expertise in specific functional areas Business Technical Operations  

No. of Board Meetings attended 

during the year 

14 

Directorships held in other Companies 

and Bodies Corporate  

Nil 

Chairman/Member of the Committee 

of the Board of Directors in other 

Companies   

Directorships in 

other Indian 

Public Limited 

Companies 

(Including this 

Company) 

No. of Board Committees in which 

Chairman / Member in Audit/ 

Stakeholder Committee 

(Including this Company) 

 Chairman Member 

1 Nil Nil 

Number of Shares held in the 

Company 

17,34,070 
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By Order of the Board of Directors 

For Hemant Surgical Industries Limited 

sd/- 

Meenal Patodia 

Company Secretary and Compliance officer  

 

Registered Office: 

502,5th Floor, Ecstasy Business Park Co-Op Society Limited,  

J.S.D. Road, Mulund West, Mumbai-400080 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date:  August 29, 2023 
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Board’s Report   

 

The Members 

Hemant Surgical Industries Limited  

Mumbai 

 

Your Directors have the immense pleasure to present the 34th (Thirty-Fourth) Board’s Report on the 

business and operations of the Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 

2023. 

 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2023 is summarized below:    

(In lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended March 31, 

2023 

Year ended March 31, 

2022 

Total Income (Revenue) 11,149.68 10,577.02 

Less: Expenses 10,143.95 10,237.34 

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 1,005.72 339.68 

Less: Tax Expense 241.99 68.00 

Profit/(Loss) after tax 763.73 271.68 

 

2. OPERATIONS & STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

 During the financial year ended on March 31, 2023, there was gross revenue of Rs. 11,149.68 lakhs 

as compared to revenue of Rs. 10,577.02 lakhs in the previous year. The profit before tax stood at Rs. 

1005.72 lakhs as against profit of Rs. 339.68 lakhs in the previous year. The net profit for the year 2023 

stood at Rs. 763.73 lakhs against profit of Rs. 271.68 lakhs reported in the previous year. 

 

 At present your Company is doing its existing line business to the optimum use of its resources and is 

taking the effort to improve its Earning per Share (EPS) and management has no plan of venturing 

into any new business. 

 

3. CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

During the year the Company is in the business of Medical Equipment & Supplies. There is no change 

in nature of the business of the Company. The Company has its registered office at Mumbai. 

 

The Company vide Prospectus dated May 30, 2023 issued its securities via Initial Public Offering and 

on June 05, 2023 the Company’s Securities were listed on BSE Emerge Platform. 

 

4. DIVIDEND AND RESERVES 

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023. 

 

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to reserves. 
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5. SHARE CAPITAL 

The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 105,000,000 (Rupees Ten crores fifty Lakhs only) 

comprising of 105,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. 

 

The paid-up Share Capital as on March 31, 2023, was Rs. 7,68,00,000 consisting of 76,80,000 Equity 

shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up.  

 

The Company has sub-divided the shares resulting into change of face value of the Company from 

Rs. 100/- per share to Rs. 10/- per share vide special resolution passed on January 03, 2023.   

  

The Company has issued and allotted Bonus Shares on December 21, 2022 in the ratio of 5:3 during 

the financial year 2022-23. 

 

The Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights during the year under review. 

 

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no  

information as per provisions of Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 

2014 is furnished. 

 

There are no shares held by trustees for the benefit of employees and hence no disclosure under 

Rule 16(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 has been furnished. 

 

6. SUBSIDAIRY AND ASSOCIATES COMPANIES 

As on March 31, 2023, the Company has no Subsidiary or Associates or Joint Venture Company.  

 

There are no companies which have become or ceased to be the Subsidiary or Associates or Joint 

Venture of the Company during the financial year ended on March 31, 2023. 

 

7. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

The Company was not required to consolidate its financial statements in terms of the provision of 

Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there-under during the financial year. 

 

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Company being listed on SME segment of BSE Limited. Therefore, Corporate Governance 

Report, as required under schedule V of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirement) 

Regulations, are not applicable to the Company 

 

9. ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return for the financial 

year ended on March 31, 2023 is available on the website of the Company at 

www.hemantsurgical.com  under Investor Information tab. 

http://www.hemantsurgical.com/
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10. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

• In terms of the provision of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and of Articles of Association 

of the Company, Mr. Hemant Praful Shah (DIN: 00215994), Director of the Company retires by 

rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, seeks re- appointment. 

• All Independent Directors have furnished the declarations to the Company confirming that they 

meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed under Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16 

(1)(b) read with Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Board has taken on record 

the said declarations after undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the same. 

• The Company has also received Form DIR-8 from all the Directors pursuant to Section 164(2) and 

Rule 14(1) of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. 

• Brief profile of the Director seeking re-appointment has been given as an annexure to the Notice 

of the ensuing AGM. 

• During the year 2022-23, following Directors/KMP were appointed: 

a.  Mr. Sourabh Ajmera was appointed as a Non-Executive, Independent Director of the 

Company on December 20, 2022 

b. Ms. Nehal Babu Karelia was appointed as a Non-Executive Director of the Company on 

December 20, 2022 

c. Ms. Pooja Kirti Kothari was appointed as a Non-Executive, Independent Director of the 

Company on January 03, 2023 

d.  Mr. Kaushik Hanskumar Shah was appointed as CFO of the Company on December 17, 2022. 

e.  Mrs. Anita Jaiswal was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance officer of the 

Company on April 05, 2022 and resigned on March 31, 2023. 

 

Ms. Meenal Patodia was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance officer of the 

Company on April 05, 2023. 

 

11. MEETINGS 

The Board of Directors of your Company met 14 (Fourteen) times during the financial year 2022-23. 

The maximum time gap between any two consecutive Meetings did not exceed one hundred and 

twenty days. 

 

12. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES THERE OF  

 

i.  Composition of the Board of Directors  

The Company is fully compliant with the Corporate Governance norms in terms of constitution a of 

the Board of Directors (“the Board”). The Board of the Company is composed of individuals from 

diverse fields. The Board of the Company is composed of Executive, Non-Executive and 

Independent Directors. 
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The composition of the Board also complies with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 17 (1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 

 

As on March 31, 2023, the strength of the Board of Directors of the Company was at Six Directors 

comprising of Three Executive, One Non-Executive Director and Two Non-Executive Independent 

Directors. 1/3rd of the Board comprised of Independent Directors. The details of the Board of Directors 

as on March 31, 2023 are given below: 

 

Name of the 

Director 

Designation Date of 

Joining 

No. of Directorships / Committee Memberships/ 

Chairmanships 

Public 

Limited 

Companies 

(including 

this) 

Private 

Limited and 

Section 8 

Companies 

Committee 

Memberships 

Committee 

Chairman Ships 

Mr. 

Hanskumar 

Shamji 

Shah 

Chairman, 

Managing 

Director 

22.02.1994 01 04 Nil Nil 

Mr. 

Hemant 

Praful Shah 

Whole 

Time 

Director 

19.09.2000 01 Nil Nil Nil 

Mr. Kaushik 

Hanskumar 

Shah 

Whole-

time 

Director, 

CFO 

17.12.2022 01 06 2 Nil 

Mrs. Nehal 

Babu  

Karelia 

Non-

Executive 

Director 

20.12.2022 01 Nil 1 Nil 

Mr. 

Sourabh 

Ajmera 

Independ

ent 

Director 

20.12.2022 02 02 3 1 

Mrs. Pooja 

Kirti Kothari 

Independ

ent 

Director 

03.01.2023 01 Nil 3 2 
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As on March 31, 2023, Mr. Hanskumar Shamji Shah, Mr. Hemant Praful Shah and Mr. Kaushik 

Hanskumar Shah, holding 35,26,400, 17,34,070 and 21,03,130 equity shares of the Company 

respectively. Ms. Neha Hanskumar shah, Neha Hemant Shah, Mrs. Leena Shah and Naman Hemant 

Shah, relatives of the Directors holding 77,760, 55,520, 87,920 and 95,200 equity shares of the 

Company respectively. Except above, no other Director or their relative hold shares of the 

Company. 

 

ii. Board Meetings  

During the financial year under review, 14 (Fourteen) Board meetings were held on April 05, 2022, 

April 06, 2022, May 31, 2022, June 15, 2022, June 27, 2022, July 11, 2022, August 05, 2022, September 

01, 2022, November 01, 2022, December 17, 2022, December 21, 2022, December 30, 2022, January 

04, 2023 and January 16, 2023. The gap between two Board meetings was in compliance with the 

provisions of the Act. Details of Directors as on March 31, 2023 and their attendance at the Board 

meetings and Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 

are given below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* Mr. Sourabh Ajmera and Ms. Nehal Babu Karelia was appointed as a Non-Executive, Independent 

Director on December 20, 2022, and Ms. Pooja Kirti Kothari was appointed as a Non-Executive, 

Independent Director on January 03, 2023. 

  

Name 

of the Director 

Category No. of the  

Meeting 

held 

No. of the 

Meeting 

attended 

Attended at 

AGM 

Mr. Hanskumar 

Shamji Shah 

Chairman, 

Managing 

Director 

14 14 Yes 

Mr. Hemant 

Praful Shah 

Whole Time 

Director, CFO 

14 14 Yes 

Mr. Kaushik 

Hanskumar 

Shah 

Whole Time 

Director 

14 14 Yes 

Mrs. Nehal 

Babu Karelia* 

Non-Executive 

Director 

14 4 NA 

Sourabh 

Ajmera* 

Independent 

Director 

14 4 NA 

Pooja Kirti 

Kothari* 

Independent 

Director 

14 2 NA 
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iii.   Audit Committee: 

The Audit Committee in terms of the provisions of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 

comprising of Mr. Sourabh Ajmera, Mrs. Pooja Kirti Kothari and Mr. Kaushik Hanskumar Shah. Mr. 

Sourabh Ajmera, Independent Director is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.  

During the year under review, 1 (One) Audit Committee Meeting was held on February 28, 2023. 

iv.   Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 

As on March 31, 2023 the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in terms of the provisions of 

section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 comprising of Mr. Sourabh Ajmera, Mrs. Pooja Kirti Kothari 

and Mrs. Nehal Babu Kareliya. Mrs. Pooja Kirti Kothari Independent Director, is the Chairman of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

 

v.   Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

 

As on March 31, 2023 the Stakeholders Relationship Committee in terms of the provisions of section 

178 of the Companies Act, 2013 comprising of Mr. Sourabh Ajmera, Mrs. Pooja Kirti Kothari and Mr. 

Kaushik Hanskumar Shah.  

 

Mrs. Pooja Kirti Kothari is the Chairman of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

 

During the year under review, 1 (One) Stakeholders Relationship Meeting was held on February 22, 

2023. 

 

13. PARTICULARS CRITERIA FOR SELECTION OF CANDIDATES FOR APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTORS, KEY 

MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down well-defined criteria, in the 

Nomination and Remuneration Policy, for selection of candidates for appointment as Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel.  

The said Policy is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed by weblink 

www.hemantsurgical.com 

 

14. FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

In compliance with the requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has put in place 

a familiarization program for Independent Directors to familiarize them with their role, rights and 

responsibility as Directors, the operations of the Company, business overview etc.  

 

The details of the familiarization program is also available on the website of the Company and can 

be accessed by weblink www.hemantsurgical.com 

  

http://www.hemantsurgical.com/
http://www.hemantsurgical.com/
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15. A STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE, AND 

EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE 

YEAR 

The Company has received declaration from the Independent Directors that they meet the criteria 

of independence as prescribed under Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16 (1)(b) read with 

Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfil the condition 

for appointment/re-appointment as Independent Directors on the Board and possess the attributes 

of integrity, expertise and experience as required to be disclosed under Rule 8(5) (iiia) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

16. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY COMPANY 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to financial statements. 

 

17. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors 

and employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or 

violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The Policy provides for adequate 

safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of the mechanism and provides for direct 

access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. It is affirmed that no person has been denied 

access to the Audit Committee. 

  

The said Policy is available on the Company website and can be accessed by weblink 

www.hemantsurgical.com 

 

18. REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

EMPLOYEES 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the framework for remuneration of 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel in the Nomination and 

Remuneration Policy recommended by it and approved by the Board of Directors. The Policy, inter-

alia, defines Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel of the Company and 

prescribes the role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Policy lays down the 

criteria for identification, appointment and retirement of Directors and Senior Management. The 

Policy broadly lays down the framework in relation to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel and Senior Management Personnel. The Policy also provides for the criteria for 

determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Director and lays down the 

framework on Board diversity. 

 

The said Policy is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed by weblink 

www.hemantsurgical.com 

http://www.hemantsurgical.com/
http://www.hemantsurgical.com/
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19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND POLICY 

All the transactions/contracts/arrangements of the nature as specified in Section 188(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 entered by the Company during the year under review with related party(ies) 

are in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis. Hence, Section 188(1) is not 

applicable and consequently no particulars in form AOC-2 are furnished. 

 

20. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 

 There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts that would impact the 

going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

 

21. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY, AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 

FROM THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR TILL THE DATE OF THE REPORT 

Since the closure of the Financial Year i.e., since March 31, 2023, the Company vide Prospectus 

dated 

May 30, 2023 issued its securities via Initial Public Offering and the Company got listed on BSE 

Emerge stock exchange on June 05, 2023. Therefore, the Company now being a Listed Company 

the 

Financial Position of the Company is varied. 

 

22. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 Pursuant to the provisions of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm that; 

i. in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 

departures, if any; 

ii. appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and such 

judgments and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit 

of the Company for the year ended on that date 

iii. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv. the annual accounts have been prepared on a “going concern” basis; 

v. proper internal financial controls are laid down and such internal financial controls are 

adequate and operating effectively; 

vi. proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws have been 

devised and such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

Your Auditors have opined that the Company has in, all material respects, maintained adequate 

internal financial controls over financial reporting and that they were operating effectively 
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23. STATUTORY AUDIT 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, A D V & Associates., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. (FRN No. 

128045W) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company on September 30, 2022 for a 

period of 5 years i.e., from the conclusion of this AGM until the conclusion of the AGM to be held in 

the year 2027. As required under Section 139 of the Act, the Company has obtained certificate 

from them to the effect that their continued appointment, would be in accordance with the 

conditions prescribed under the Act and the Rules made thereunder, as may be applicable. 

 

 The Auditors’ Report is unmodified i.e., it does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse 

remark. 

 

24. REPORTING OF FRAUD 

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors 

to report under Section 143(12) of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. 

 

25. COST AUDIT AND COST RECORDS 

 The Company is maintaining the accounts and cost records as specified by the Central Government 

under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and Rules made thereunder. 

 

 In compliance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company 

had at its Meeting held on September 01, 2022, appointed M/s. K Sorathiya & Co., Cost Accountants 

as Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2022-23. 

 

26. SECRETARIAL AUDIT 

Secretarial Audit is not applicable for financial year ended 31st March, 2023 as the Company was a 

public company as on 31st March, 2023 & the Company does not fall into the criteria mentioned 

under section 204 of Companies Act, 2013. 

 

27. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

The Company has complied with the applicable SS-1 (Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board 

of Directors) and SS-2 (Secretarial Standard on General Meetings) issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government under Section 118(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

28. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND EQUITY SHARES TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 

FUND (IEPF)  

Pursuant to Section 124 of the Act read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 

(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund Rules), 2016 (‘the IEPF Rules’), during the year under review, 

no amount of Unclaimed dividend and corresponding equity shares were due to be transferred to 

IEPF account.  
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29. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has an adequate system of internal control to ensure that the resources are used 

efficiently and effectively so that: 

 assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition.  

 all significant transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly.  

 financial and other data are reliable for preparing financial information.  

 other data are appropriate for maintaining accountability of assets.  

 

The internal control is supplemented by an extensive internal audits programme, review by 

management along with documented policies, guidelines and procedures. 

 

As per Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed M/s. A D M S and 

Company, Chartered Accountants., as an internal auditor for the year 2023-24 to conduct the 

internal audit and to ensure adequacy of the Internal controls, adherence to Company’s policies 

and ensure statutory and other compliance through periodical checks and internal audit 

 

30. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONROL AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size, scale 

and complexity of its operations. The Company has policies and procedures in place for ensuring 

proper and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the 

timely preparation of reliable financial information. The Company has adopted accounting policies, 

which are in line with the Accounting Standards and the Act 

 

31. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 During the financial year under review, the Company has identified and evaluates elements of 

business risk. Consequently, a Business Risk Management framework is in place. The risk 

management framework defines the risk management approach of the Company and includes 

periodic review of such risks and also documentation, mitigating controls and reporting mechanism 

of such risks. The framework has different risk models which help in identifying risks trend, exposure 

and potential impact analysis at a Company level as also separately for business. 

 

32. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY 

 The Company has always believed in providing a conducive work environment devoid of 

discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment. The Company has a well formulated 

Policy on Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment. The objective of the Policy is to prohibit, 

prevent and address issues of sexual harassment at the workplace. This Policy has striven to prescribe 

a code of conduct for the employees and all employees have access to the Policy document and 

are required to strictly abide by it. The Policy covers all employees, irrespective of their nature of 

employment and is also applicable in respect of all allegations of sexual harassment made by an 

outsider against an employee. 
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 The Company has duly constituted an Internal Complaints Committee in line with the provisions of 

the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

and the Rules thereunder. During the year 2022-23, no case of Sexual Harassment was reported. 

 

33. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

 Provision of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company during the year under review. 

 

34. ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY 

Your Company is committed to ensure sound Safety, Health and Environmental (SHE) performance 

related to its activities, products and services. Your Company is taking continuous steps to develop 

Safer Process Technologies and Unit Operations and has been investing heavily in areas such as 

Process Automation for increased safety and reduction of human error element.  

 

The Company is committed to continuously take further steps to provide a safe and healthy 

environment. 

 

35. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 

OUTGO 

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of energy and 

technology absorption are not applicable to the Company considering the nature of activities 

undertaken by the Company during the period under review. 

 

The transactions involving foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the period under review is 

as follows: 

Foreign Exchange Income: Rs. 1240. 39 Lakhs 

Foreign Exchange Outgo: Rs. 5890.59 Lakhs 

 

36. PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

The Company has not accepted or renews any deposits, within the meaning of Section 73 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

 

37. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND OTHER ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

The information required under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1), (2) & 

(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in 

respect of employees of the Company are given in Annexure – 1 and 2 to this report. 

 

38. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 

The Business Responsibility Reporting as required under SEBI (LODR), 2015 and is not applicable to 

your Company for the financial year under review. 
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39. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year 22-23 as stipulated under SEBI (LODR), 

Regulations, 2015 has annexed as Annexure -3 of this Report. 

 

40. DISCLOSURE OF AGREEMENTS  

Disclosure as required under para-F of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are not applicable to the Company during the financial year. 

 

41. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements in this Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, notice to the Shareholders or 

elsewhere in this Annual Report, describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and 

expectations may constitute ‘forward looking statement’ within the meaning of applicable laws 

and regulations. Actual results might differ materially from those either expressed or implied in the 

statement depending on the Market conditions and circumstances. 

 

42. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND APPRECIATION 

Your directors would like to acknowledge and place on record their sincere appreciation to all 

Stakeholders, Clients, Financial Institutions, Banks, Central and State Governments, the Company’s 

valued Investors and all other Business Partners, for their continued co-operation and support 

extended during the year. 

 

Your Directors recognize and appreciate the efforts and hard work of all the employees of the 

Company and their continued contribution to promote its development. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  

Hemant Surgical Industries Limited 

 

Sd/-                                       Sd/-  

Hanskumar shamji Shah     Kaushik Hanskumar Shah 

(Managing Director)            (Whole-time Director) 

DIN: 00215972              DIN: 01483743 

 

Registered Office: 

502, 5th Floor, Ecstasy Business Park Co-Op Society Limited,  

J.S.D. Road, Mulund West Mumbai -400080 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated: August 29, 2023 
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE BOARD’S REPORT 

 

Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) 

of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

 

i)  Ratio of the remuneration of each Executive Director to the median remuneration of the 

Employees of the Company for the financial year 2022 – 2023. 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of the Director Designation Ratio of remuneration of 

each Director to 

median remuneration of 

employees 

1. Mr. Hanskumar Shamji Shah Managing 

Director 

13.86 

2. Mr. Hemant Praful Shah  Whole-time 

Director 

19.40 

3. Mr. Kaushik Hanskumar 

Shah  

Whole-time 

Director 

19.40 

 

ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 

Executive Officer and Company Secretary or manager during the financial year 2022–2023. 

Sr. 

No. 

Name Designation % increase in 

remuneration 

1. Mr. Hanskumar Shamji Shah

 

Managing Director 0% 

2. Mr. Hemant Praful Shah  Whole-time Director 0% 

3. Mr. Kaushik Hanskumar 

Shah  

Whole-time Director & 

CFO 

0% 

4. Ms. Meenal Patodia Company Secretary NA 

 

iii) The Company has 86 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2023. 

 

iv) Relationship between average increase in remuneration and Company’s performance: 

 As compared to Company’s increase in performance, increase in remuneration is reasonable 

considering present market scenario and also considering reduction in remuneration in respect 

of surplus staff. 

 

v) Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of 

the Company: 
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Sr. 

No. 

Particulars 2022 –23 

(Rs. In lakhs)  

2021 –22 

(Rs. In lakhs) 

% 

increase/ 

(decrease) 

1 Sales / Revenue 10,914.82 10,357.00 5.39% 

2 Profit before tax 1,005.72 339.68 196.08% 

3 Remuneration of the 

KMP 

114.00 114.00 Nil 

 

vi) Average percentage increase in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel 

in the financial year is 9.83% whereas the increase in the managerial remuneration was Nil. 

 

vii) Comparison of each remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of 

the Company. 

Sl. 

No. 

Name of Key 

Managerial Personnel 

Designation % increase 

 in 

Remuneration 

% of 

increase 

 in  

performanc

e 

1. Mr. Hanskumar Shamji 

Shah 

Managing 

Director 

NIL NIL 

2. Mr. Hemant Praful 

Shah 

Whole-time 

Director 

NIL NIL 

3. Mr. Kaushik Hanskumar 

Shah 

Whole-time 

Director & CFO 

NIL NIL 

4. Ms. Meenal Patodia Company 

Secretary 

NIL NIL 

 

viii)The key parameter for any variable component of remuneration availed by Managing Directors: 

Not applicable being there is no variable component is paid to Managing Director. 

 

ix)The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid Director to that of the Employees who are not 

Directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director during the year: Not 

Applicable. 

 

xi) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the Remuneration Policy 

of the Company. 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  

Hemant Surgical Industries Limited 

 

Sd/-                                       Sd/-                  

Hanskumar shamji Shah     Kaushik Hanskumar Shah 

(Managing Director)            (Whole-time Director) 

DIN: 00215972              DIN: 01483743 

 

Registered Office: 

502, 5th Floor, Ecstasy Business Park Co-Op Society Limited,  

J.S.D. Road, Mulund West Mumbai -400080 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated: August 29, 2023 
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE BOARD’S REPORT 

 

Details of employees pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & (3) 

of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014. –  

Not Applicable as no employees or managerial personnel draw salary equal to or exceeding 

Rs.102,00,000 p.a. or Rs.8,50,000 per month. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  

Hemant Surgical Industries Limited 

 

Sd/-                                       Sd/-                  

Hanskumar shamji Shah     Kaushik Hanskumar Shah 

(Managing Director)            (Whole-time Director) 

DIN: 00215972              DIN: 01483743 

 

Registered Office: 

502, 5th Floor, Ecstasy Business Park Co-Op Society Limited,  

J.S.D. Road, Mulund West Mumbai -400080 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated: August 29, 2023 
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ANNEXURE 3 TO THE BOARD’S REPORT 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS: 

We manufacture, import, assemble and market a comprehensive portfolio of medical equipment’s 

and disposables. Our product offerings cover a wide spectrum of equipment’s and disposables 

required for (i) Renal Care, (ii) cardiovascular disease (iii) respiratory disease, (iv) Critical Care and 

Radiology and (v) Surgical disposables. Our wide range of products include some of the 

indigenously manufactured products along with some other products that are imported from 

countries like: Japan, China France and Australia and are further processed in our assembly units. 

In addition, we are also providing services for maintenance and running of dialysis centres. 

 

Our company started its operations with importing and marketing of medical disposables like: 

meditapes, all over India from JMS Co Ltd. Japan. Later in the year 1999 our company started its 

manufacturing operations with one Manufacturing unit and over the years expanded its 

manufacturing and assembly operations to two more additional units as under: 

 

1)  Manufacturing Unit I situated at Achad Industrial Estate – where we first started our operations in 

1999 and are currently manufacturing products like: Dialysis solution (liquid and Powder) used in 

dialysis, Hot and Cold Sterilant used for cleaning dialyzer, Purified water used in rinsing and 

cleaning of dialysis machines and sanitizer. 

2)  Assembly Unit II situated at Atgaon - for assembly of various medical devices like: Nebulizers, 

Oxygen Concentrator, Air Mattress, Digital Thermometer, Pulse Oximeters, ECG Electrodes, 

Dialyzer which are sold under the Brand Name “Aero Plus”. Silicon Foley catheters imported from 

China which are further processed and sold under the Brand name “Safecath” and for assembly 

of new and refurbished dialysis machines imported from China, France and Australia, Meditapes 

imported from JMS Co. Ltd., Japan. 

3)  Assembly Unit III situated at Bhiwandi – for assembly of products like: Intravenous infusion set, 

ECG Machines, Ultrasound Machines, Paramonitor, Ventilator etc. 

 

OVERVIEW OF THE INDUSTRY: 

The Indian market for medical equipment is predicted to increase to US$ 50 billion by 2025. India is 

the 4th largest Asian medical devices market after Japan, China, and South Korea, and among the 

top 20 medical devices markets globally.  

 

The Indian healthcare sector is expected to record a three-fold rise, growing at a CAGR of 22% 

between 2016- 22 to reach US$ 372 billion in 2022 from US$ 110 billion in 2016. As of August 23, 2022, 

more than 210.31 crore COVID-19 vaccine doses have been administered across the country. The 

e-health market size is estimated to reach US$ 10.6 billion by 2025. 
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OPERATING RESULTS OF THE COMPANY 

The revenue from operations of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 stood at Rs. 

10,914.82 lakhs as against Rs. 10,357.00 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2022. The Company has 

incurred a profit of Rs. 763.73 lakhs for the Year ended March 31, 2023 as compared to Rs. 271.68 

lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

 

STRENGTH 

 

 We offer a diversified range of products. 

 Existing well-established reputation and customer relationships  

 Quality Assurance 

 Stable financial performance with improved margins 

 Experienced management team with industry expertise and successful track record 

 

COMPETITION:  

We face competition from organized and unorganized players in the healthcare industry which 

have a presence across multiple regions in India. There are various companies offering products 

and services similar to us. We believe the principal elements of competition in our industry are price, 

durability, product quality, timely delivery and reliability and most importantly our pace in keeping 

up with the changing technology in the industry.  

 

To stay competitive, we regularly update our existing facilities/technology and adopt new 

technology for our manufacturing facilities. We aim to keep our costs of production low to maintain 

our competitive advantage and our profit margins. We continuously seek new product 

registrations, marketing 112 authorizations to increase our product offerings.  

 

PROSPECT & OUTLOOK 

The management is of the view that the future prospects of your Company are bright and the 

performance in the current year is expected to be very well. The committed customers of the 

Company are expected to place more orders, which ultimately affect the top line of the Company, 

positively. 

 

RISKS AND CONCERNS 

The Company has taken adequate preventive and precautionary measures to overcome all 

negative factors responsible for low trend to ensure steady growth. 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

There are well-established procedures for Internal Controls for operations of the Company. The 

finance & audit functions are well equipped with professionally experienced qualified personnel & 

play important roles in implementing the statutory obligations. The Company has constituted Audit 

Committee for guidance and proper control of affairs of the Company. 
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HUMAN RESOURCES 

Human Resources Development, in all its aspects like training in safety and social values is under 

constant focus of the management. Relations between the management & the employees at all 

levels remained healthy & cordial throughout the year. The Management and the employees are 

dedicated to achieve the corporate objectives and the targets set before the company. 

 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, 

expectations, predictions and assumptions may be “FORWARD LOOKING” within the meaning of 

applicable Laws and Regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed herein, 

important factors that could influence the Company’s operations include domestic economic 

Conditions affecting demand, supply, price conditions, and change in Government’s regulations, 

tax regimes, other statutes and other factors such as industrial relations. 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of  

Hemant Surgical Industries Limited 

 

Sd/-                                       Sd/-                  

Hanskumar shamji Shah     Kaushik Hanskumar Shah 

(Managing Director)            (Whole-time Director) 

DIN: 00215972              DIN: 01483743 

 

Registered Office: 

502, 5th Floor, Ecstasy Business Park Co-Op Society Limited,  

J.S.D. Road, Mulund West Mumbai -400080 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Dated: August 29, 2023 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
To 

The Members of HEMANT SURGICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements: 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of HEMANT SURGICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the 
financial statements"). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended, ("AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit and its cash flows for the year ended 
on that date. 
 
Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements. 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's 
Report including Annexure to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance 
and Shareholder's Information, but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor's report 
thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated 
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Accounting 
Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAS will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  
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 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 
 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.  
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company with reference to these financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial 
controls over financial reporting. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: In our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the 
Company to its directors during the year is not in accordance with the provisions of section 197 
of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
i. The Company does not have any pending litigations on its financial position in its Financial 

Statements 
ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts, as such 

the question of commenting on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise. 
iii. There was no amount which was required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the company. 
IV. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other 

than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 
by the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries, 

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than 
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company 
from any person or entity, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, and 

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the 
representations under sub- clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement. 

 V. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

For ADV & Associates  
Chartered Accountants  
FRN: 128045W 
 
 
Sd/- 
Ankit Rathi 

Place: Mumbai                                                                                      Partner M. No.: 162441  
Date: 28th April, 2023                                                                            UDIN:23162441BGZGTI6140 
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Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HEMANT SURGICAL 
INDUSTRIES LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. 
 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the 
Company. 
 
Meaning of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
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that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 
 
Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 

 
For ADV & Associates  
Chartered Accountants  
FRN: 128045W 
 
Sd/- 
Ankit Rathi 

Place: Mumbai                                                                                     Partner M. No.: 162441  
Date: 28th April, 2023                                                                           UDIN:23162441BGZGTI6140 
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Annexure "B" to the Independent Auditor's Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of 
our report to the Members of HEMANT SURGICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED of even date) 
 
1) In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment's and Intangible Assets:  

a) 1. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has maintained 
proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed 
assets, 

              2. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.  
 

b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner 
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of 
its assets. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically verified by 
the management during the year and no material discrepancies between the book's records 
and the physical fixed assets have been noticed. 
 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us 
and based on the examination of the registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the 
title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, 
are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

 

d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-
use assets) and intangible assets during the year. 

 

e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as 
at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made there under. 

2) In Respect of Inventories: 
a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals 

during the year, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the 
management is appropriate. As informed to us, any discrepancies of 10% or more in the 
aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on such verification. 
 

b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees during 
the year in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current 
assets; quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or financial 
institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company except the following:  

 
 
 
 
 
 

3) During the year the company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security 
but granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties: 
  

Particulars As per Books 
As per stock 
statement 

Difference 

September 2023 1657.41 Lakhs 1652.38 Lakhs 5.03 Lakhs 
March 2023 1480.66 Lakhs 1500.58 Lakhs 19.91 Lakhs 
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(a) During the year the company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or 

stood guarantee, or provided security to associate company: 
          (Rs. In Lakhs) 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(b)According to the information and explanation given to us, the terms and conditions of the grant 
of loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the 
company's interest;  

 
(c) Schedule of repayment of the principal amount and the payment of the interest have not been 

stipulated and hence we are unable to comment as to whether receipt of the principal amount 
and the interest is regular, 

 
(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, no amount is overdue in this respect, 
 
(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of any loan or advance in 

the nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, none has been renewed or 
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the over dues of existing loans given to the same parties; 

 
(f) The company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand 

or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, required details in respect thereof are as 
below: 

                                                                                                                                                   (Rs. In Lakhs) 

 
4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 In respect of loans, 
investments, guarantees, and security. 
 
5) The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed 
deposits as at 31" March, 2023 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 
 
6) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company in respect of 
products where pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended and 
prescribed by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Act. We are of the opinion, that 

To Whom 
The aggregate 
amount During 
the year 

Balance Outstanding at the 
end of the year 

Ikigai Services Private Limited 8.29 11.04 
Lifesenz Cancer Research Lab Pvt Ltd 333.35 331.37 
Hanshik Healthcare 1.55 1.55 
TOTAL 343.19 343.96 

The Aggregate Amount Loans Given to Other 

Aggregate amount of loans 
granted to Promoters, related 

parties as defined in clause (76) 
of section 2 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 
343.19 - 343.19 
100% - 100% 
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prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been maintained by the Company. The 
contents of these accounts and records have not been examined by us. 
 
7) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales 
tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess, GST and any other statutory 
dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, 
undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at 31 March, 2023 for a 
period of more than six months from the date on when they become payable. 
 
(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has dispute against the 
assessment of surgical tapes by custom not grandly benefit of exemption notification as an 
accessories for medical device, company has paid full amount Rs 3,56,02,689 under protest and has 
filed appeal which is pending in supreme court. There are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service 
tax, duty of excise, value added tax, GST outstanding on account of any dispute: 
 
8) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has 
not been recorded in the books of account. 
 
9) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not defaulted in 
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during 
the year. 
 
(b) Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender,  
 
(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, term loans were applied for the 

purpose for which the loans were obtained;  
 
(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, funds raised on short term basis have 

not been utilized for long term purposes;  
 
(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not taken any funds 

from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or 
joint ventures; 

 
(f) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised loans 

during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 
companies; 

 
10) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer. 
 
(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 

shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) 
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11)(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by 
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or 
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.  
 
(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-

4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government, during the year and upto the date of this report. 

 
(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, no whistle-blower complaints, received 

during he year by the company, 
 
12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
 
13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 
of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required 
by the applicable accounting standards. 
 
14) Internal Audit System & Report: 
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has an internal audit 

system commensurate with the size and nature of its business,  
 
(b) We have considered the reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit, 
 
15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company and hence not commented upon. 
 
16) (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the 
year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

 
(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by 

the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

 
(d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core 

Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
17) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and 
the immediately preceding financial year. 
 
18) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 
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19) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and 
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of 
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is 
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based 
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 
 
20) The provision of sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 not applicable to the 
company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 
 
 

For ADV & Associates  
Chartered Accountants  
FRN: 128045W 
 
 
 Sd/- 
 Ankit Rathi 

Place: Mumbai                                                                                      Partner M. No.: 162441  
Date: 28th April, 2023                                                                             UDIN:23162441BGZGTI6140 
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 BALANCE SHEET 
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 PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT 
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 CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2023 
 

Note: - 1 

Company Background: 
 

Hemant surgical Industries limited is a limited company, incorporated on 27/03/1989 with the main 
object of Importing, manufacturing, and marketing quality surgical and pharmaceutical products. 
 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 
The Financial Statements are prepared to comply in all material aspects with the applicable 
accounting principles in India, the accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Basis of Preparation: 
The financial statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention 
on the accrual basis of accounting and comply with the Accounting Standards issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable. The financials statements are presented in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated. 
 
During the year, the figures of the previous year have been regrouped and recast wherever 
necessary to confirm to the groupings of the current year. 
 
Use of Estimates: 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based 
upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the 
financial statements. Actual results may differ from the estimates and assumptions used in preparing 
the accompanying financial statements. Any differences of actual results to such estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialized. 
 
Revenue Recognition: 
Revenue / Income and Cost / Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual basis as they are 
earned or incurred except in case of significant uncertainties. Revenue is measured at the fair value 
of consideration received or receivable taking into account contractually defined terms of payment. 
Sales comprise of sale of services. 
 
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible asset and Depreciation: 
Property, Plant and Equipments and Intangible asset are stated at cost, less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and the costs, which are 
attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition, for its intended use. 
 
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipments and Intangible asset is provided on written down 
value based on the useful life estimated by the management and as per the depreciation rate 
specified below: 
  



 

 
 
 

68 55 
 
68 

 
Particulars Useful Life 
Land - 
Factory Building 30 
Other than Factory building 60 
Plant & Machinery 15 
VEHICLE : Motor cycle, bike & scooter 10 
VEHICLE : Motor car, tempo, lories 8 
Office Equipment’s 5 
Furniture & Fixture 10 
Computers 3 

 
Depreciation on the Property, Plant and Equipments and Intangible asset added/disposed 
off/discarded during the year is provided on pro rata basis with reference to the month of 
addition/disposal/discarding. 
 
Impairment of Assets: 
In accordance with AS 28 ‘Impairment of Assets’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India, the carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to 
determine whether there is any impairment. The recoverable amount of the assets (or where 
applicable, that of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs) is estimated as the higher of 
its net selling price and its value in use. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying 
amount of an asset or a cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss or against revaluation surplus where applicable.  
  
Investments: 

i) Current investments are carried at the lower of cost or quoted / fair value, computed 
category wise.  
 

ii) Non-Current Investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of long-term 
investments is made only if such a decline is other than temporary in the opinion of the 
management. 
 

iii) Investments held for Sale comprising of assets and liabilities are classified as ‘held for sale / 
Current Investments’ when all of the following criteria’s are met: 

a) Decision has been made to sell. 
b) The assets are available for immediate sale in its present condition. 
c) The assets are being actively marketed and 
d) Sale has been agreed or is expected to be concluded within 12 months of the Balance 

Sheet date. 
 
Taxation: 
Income tax expenses comprises of Current Income Tax and Deferred Tax. 
 
Current Taxes: 
Provision for current income-tax is recognized in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961 and is made annually based on the tax liability after taking credit for tax allowances and 
exemptions.  
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Provisions & Contingencies: 
The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that 
probably requires an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there 
is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of 
resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood 
of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
 
Employee Benefits: 
Contributions to Provident Fund, being a Defined Contribution Plan, are accounted on accrual 
basis and charged to the Profit & Loss account for the year. Gratuity is accounted based on the 
Gratuity Report from Actuary. Bonus and leave encashment is accounted on payment basis. 
 
Inventories : 
The inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower and the cost is arrived 
as follows: 

(i) Raw-materials cost is at landing cost inclusive of all attributable expenses and is computed 
on First in First Out basis.    

 
(ii) Work-in progress and finished goods cost include material cost, cost of conversion and other 

costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 
 
Borrowing Costs: 
According to AS-16 Borrowing costs, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, 
borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of qualifying assets are capitalized for 
the period until the asset is ready for its intended use.  
A qualifying asset being, an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for 
its intended use.  
Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
Events occurring after Balance Sheet Date:  
Events accruing after Balance Sheet Date have been considered in preparation of Financial 
Statement. 
 
Extraordinary Items: 
There are no such items noted which are Extra Ordinary in nature and at the same time which 
materially affect the financial statement being certified here. 
 
Foreign Exchange Transactions/Translation 
Foreign currency transactions and balances: 

(i) Initial Recognition 
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign 
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at 
the date of the transaction. 
 

(ii) Conversion: 
Foreign Currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting 
date. 
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(iii) Exchange Differences: 
Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items related to acquisition of 
a fixed asset are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset. The 
exchange differences on other foreign currency monetary items are accumulated in ‘Foreign 
Currency Monetary Item  Translation  Difference  Account’  and  amortized  over  the  remaining  life  
of  the  concerned monetary item. 
 
All other exchange differences are recognized as income or as expenses in the period  in which  they 
arise. 
 
Cash Flow Statement: 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future, operating 
cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing and financing 
cash flows. The cash flows from Operating, Investing and Financing activities of the Company are 
segregated. 
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 BS NOTES 
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 FIXED ASSETS 
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 P&L NOTES 
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 P&L NOTES 
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 NOTE 28 – RELATED PARTY 
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 NOTE – 28 GRATUITY 
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 NOTE 29 TO 31 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
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